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NOTICE

Motice is hereby given that the Twenty-Ninth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Hindustan
Foods Limited (‘the Company") will be held at the Registered Office of the Company at Dempo House,
Campal, Panaji, Goa 403001, on Saturday, the 27" of September, 2014 at 10:30 a.m. to transact the
following business.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheetofthe Company asat31" March,
2014 and Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the financial period comprising 6
manths period ended on that date as also the reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Toappoint M/s. R. Sundararaman & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 0042195),
as Statutory Auditors of the Company under Saction 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 to hold office
for a period of three years from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting and to authorize the
Board of Directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To appoint Dr. Asht Bhuja Prasad (holding DIN 008179202), as an Independent Director and in this
regard to consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution :

*RESOLVED that pursuant fo the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule |V to the
Companies Act, 2013, Dr. Asht Bhuja Prasad (holding DIMN 00817902), Director of the Company
who refires by rotation at the Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, from a member
proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company to hold office for a term of five consecutive years up to the fifth consecutive
AGM ofthe Company to be held in the year 2019, not liable to retire by rotation”.

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that Mr. Soiru V. Dempo (holding DIN 00206062) who was appointed by the Board of
Directors as an Additional Director under Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and who
vacates his office at this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom a notice in writing pursuant
to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been received in the prescribed manner, be and is
hareby appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation®

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

*RESOLVED that Mr. Ganesh Tukaram Argekar {(holding DIN 0685379) who was appointed by tha
Board of Directors as an Additional Director under Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
who vacates his office at this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom a notice in writing
pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been received in the prescribed manner, ba
and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation”

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resclution as an
Ordinary Resolution:
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10.

“RESOLVED that, pursuant to Section 196, 203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder, the Company be and hereby approves the
appointment of Mr. Ganesh Tukaram Argekar (holding DIN 06865379) as Whole-Time Director of
the Company, designated as “Executive Director” for a period of 3 years effective from 19th May,
2014 to 18th May, 2017, without any remuneration.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Seclions 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thersunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the
Companies Act, 2013, Adv. Sudin M. Usgaonkar (holding DIN 00326964), Director of the Company
whose period of office is liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation and in respect
of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing his candidature for
the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold
office for five consecutive years up to the fifth consecutive AGM of the Company to be held in the
year 2019, not liable to retire by rotation.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable
prowvisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ashok N. Manjrekar (holding DIN 00496542}, Director of the Company
whose period of office is liable lo determination by retirement of directors by rolation and in respect
of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing his candidature for
the office of Director, be and s hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold
office for five consecutive years up to the fifth consecutive AGM of the Company to be held in the
year 2019, not liable to retire by rotation.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED that in supersession of the Ordinary Resolution adopted at the Extra Ordinary General
Meeting of the Company held on 27" March, 1996 and pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) and any other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the consent of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors to bormow moneys in excess of the
aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company, provided that the total
amount borrowed and outstanding at any point of time, apart from temporary loans obtained/io be
obtained from the Company's Bankers in the ordinary course of business, shall not be in excess of
Rs. 25 crore (Rupees Twenty Five crore) over and above the aggregate of the paid up share capital
and free reserves of the Company.”

To ratify the appointment of Cost Auditors for the year 2014-15. In this connection, to consider and, if
thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of Rs.40,000/- (Rupees Forty Thousand only) plus
service tax and out of pocket expenses for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2015 as approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company, to be paid to Mr. Dilip M. Vengurlekar, Cost Accountant,
Panaji-Goa, having Membership no. 5824 and Firm Registration no. 100623 for the conduct of the
cost audit of the Company's Food Processing manufacturing unit at Usgao, be and is hereby ratified
and confirmed.”
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Notes:
1.

AMEMBERENTITLED TOATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING ISENTITLED TOAPPOINT A
PROXY/PROXIES TOATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. SUCH APROXY/
PROXIES NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A person can act as proxy on behalf of
members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total
share capital of the Company.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
meeting. A Proxy form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies
etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

The Explanatory Statement setting out all material facts as required Section 102 of the Companies
Act, 2013in respect of the special business is annexed hereto.

Details under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange in respect of the
Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting (AGM), forms
integral part of the notice. The Directors have fumnished the requisite declarations for their
appointment/re-appointment.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
the 23™ September, 2014 to Saturday, the 27" September, 2014 (both days inclusive).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can
submit their PAN details to the Company.

The 287 Annual Report 2013-14 and the Notice of the 28" AGM is placed on the website of the
Company viz. www.hflgoa.com and also on the website of CDSL viz. www.cdslindia. com

Voting through electronic means

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Clause 35B of tha Listing
Agreement with the stock exchange, the Company is pleased lo provide members facility to
exercise their right lo vole at the 297 Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the
business may be transacted through e-Voling Services provided by Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL):

The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:-

(I} The voting period begins on Saturday, September 20, 2014 and ends on Monday, September
22, 2014. During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of August 15, 2014, may cast
their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(i) Logontothe e-voting website www.evolingindia.com

(i) Click on"Shareholders”tab.

(iv) Now Enter your User ID

a. ForCDSL: 16 digits beneficiary |D,
b. ForNSDL: 8 Character DP |D followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folioc Number registered with
the Company.
(v]) MNextenterthe Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(vi) Ifyou are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evolingindia.com and voted
on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
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(vii) Ifyou are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN"

= Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN ssued by Income Tax Department

{Applncahle for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
Members who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the first two
letters of their name and the last 8 digits of the demat accountffalio
number in the PAN fiald.

* In case the folio number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable
number of 0's before the number after the first two characters of the
name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with folio
nurmber 100 than enter RADOOC0100 in the PAN field.

DOB#

Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company
records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mmiyyyy format.

Bank

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the

Details# = Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the

company records for the said demat account or folio.

details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter
the number of shares held by you as on the cut off date in the
Dividend Bank details field.

(viii)
(ix)

(%)
(i)

(xil)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)
(o)

After entering these details appropriately, click on *SUBMIT" tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the Company selection
screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password
Creation” menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in
the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat
holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vole,
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-vating
an the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for "HINDUSTAN FOODS LIMITED" on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same
the option “YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK® if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT™. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to
change your vote, click on "“CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vole.

Once you "CONFIRM™ your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vole.

¥ou can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print”
option on the Voling page.
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(xwii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID
and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as

prompted by the system.

{wvili) Nute for Non — Individual Shareholders and Cuslodians

Mon-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and
Custodian are required to log on to www evotingindia.com and register themselves
as Corporates.

= Ascanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity
should be emailed to helpdesk evoting@cdslindia.com.

= After receiving the login details they have to create a compliance user should be
created using the admin login and password. The Compliance user would be able
to link the account(s) forwhich they wish to vota on,

«  The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk. evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

«  Ascanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be upleaded in PDF format in
the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xix) Incaseyouhave any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voling manual available at www evotingindia.com
under help section or write an email to helpdesk. evoting@cdslindia.com.

8. In case of those Members, who do not have access to e-voting facility, they can use the
assent/dissent form sent herewith or can be downloaded from our website www. hflgoa.com and
convey their assent/dissent to each one of the items of business to be transacted at the ensuing
AGM and send the form to reach Mr. Sadashiv V. Shet, Scrutinizer appointed by the Company
at the registered office of the Company on or before September 22, 2014 (5.00 pm).

9. Members can choose only one of the two options, namely e-voting or voting through physical
assent/dissent form. In case the votes are casted through both the formats, then votes casted
through e-voting shall stand cancelled and those votes casted through physical assent/dissent form
would be considered, subject to the assent/dissent form being found to ba valid.

10. The Results of e-voling, physical assent/ dissent and poll, if any, shall be aggregated and declared
on or after the AGM of the Company by the Chairman or by any other person duly authorised in this
regard. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's
website www.hflgoa.com and on the website of COSL within two(2) days of passing of the
resolutions at the AGM of the Company and communicated to the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited.

11. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be open
for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on all working
days, up to and including the date of the AGM.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM 3

Dr. Asht Bhuja Prasad is a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. He joined the Board of
Directors of the Company in January, 2002. Dr. Prasad is a member of the Share Transfer, Investors'
Grievance and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Dr. Prasad is a Chemical Engineer with Masters from |IT, Bombay and Ph.D. in Chemical Engineering. He
has extensive experience in the operation and management of process industries and project engineering.
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Dr. Prasad is a Director in Goa Carbon Ltd., Dempo Global Corporation Pte. Ltd. and Goa Medical
Research Pwvt. Ltd.; the Member of the Share Transfer, Investors’ Grievance and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee of Goa Carbon Lid.

Dr. Prasad holds 500 equity shares in the Company, which works out to 0.01% of the total capital of the
Company.

Dr. Prasad retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting under the erstwhile applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 1958. In terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Dr. Prasad being eligible and offering himself for appointment, is proposed to be
appointed as an Independent Director for five consecutive years up to the fifth consecutive AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2019, not liable to retire by rotation. A notice has been received from a
membser proposing Dr. Prasad as a candidate for the office of Director of the Company.

In the opinion of the Board, Dr. Prasad fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is independent of
the management. Copy of the draft letter for appointment of Dr. Prasad as an Independent Director setting
out the terms and conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the
Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day.

The Board considers that his continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company and itis
desirable to continue to avail services of Dr. Prasad as an Indepandent Director.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution in relation to appointment of Dr. Prasad as an
Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

Except Dr. Prasad, being an appoiniee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at
Item no. 3. This Explanatory Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under Clause 49 of the
Listing agreement with the Stock Exchange.

ITEM4

In order to adhere to the new provigions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Soiru V. Dempo resigned as
Executive Director of the Company with effect from May 19, 2014. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the
Company at their meeting held on May 19, 2014 appointed Mr. Soiru V. Dempo as Additional Director of the
Company pursuant to section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the category of Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director. As an Additional Director, Mr. Soiru V. Dempo will hold office only
upto the date of this Annual General Meeting. The Company has received requisite notice from a member
under Section 160 of the Act, proposing the candidature of Mr. Dempo to the office of Director.

Mr. Dempo is a Bachelor in Economics. He is an Industrialist and brings his vide experience in decision
making into the Company's Board.

Mr. Dempe holds directorship and membership of the Committees of the Board of Directors of the under
stated olher companies in India:

*  Whole time Director in V. S. Dempo Holdings Pvt. Lid. and Managing Director in Dempo
Shipbuilding and Engineering Pvt. Lid.

*  Director in Celtic Investments Pvi. Ltd, Ameya Investments Pvi. Lid,, V. 5. Dempo Mining
Corporation Pvi. Ltd_, Dempo Travels Pvt. Ltd., Vision Dempo Hospitality and Estates Pvt. Ltd.,
Vishwas Media and Entertainment Pvt. Ltd. and Goa Carbon Lid.

Member of the Share Transfer, Investors' Grievance and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Goa
Carbon Ltd.

Mr. Dempo does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares in the
Company.
The Board of Directors commend passing of the resolution set outin item No.4 of the Notice.

&



@D

Except Mr. Dempo, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concernad or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at
Item no. 4. This Explanatory Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under Clause 49 of the Listing
agreement with the Stock Exchange.

ITEM5&6

Consequent to the resignation of Mr. Soiru V. Dempo as Executive Director of the Company, the Board of
Directors of the Company at their meeting held on May 19, 2014 appointed Mr. Ganesh Tukaram Argekar as
Additional Director of the Company and as Whole-time Director, designated as Executive Director, for a
period of 3 years from April 19, 2014 to April 18, 2017, subject to the approval of the Members at the ensuing
Annual General Meating.

Mr. Argekar is BSC (Chemistry) and PGDMM — IMM.

Mr. Argekar is the Head — Supply Chain of Vanity Case Group of Companies and has about 19 years of
overall work experiance during which time he has held various managerial positions.

Mr. Argekar does not hold any other directorship in any company in India, other than Hindustan Foods Ltd.

Mr. Argekar does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares in the
Company.

The Board of Directors commend passing of the resolutions set outin item No.5 & 6 of the Notice.

Except Mr. Argekar, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwize, in the resolutions set out at
Item no. 5 & 6. This Explanatory Stalement may also be regarded as a disclosure under Clause 49 of the
Listing agreement with the Stock Exchange.

ITEMT

Adv. Sudin M. Usgaonkar is a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. He joined the Board of
Directors of the Company in October, 2002. Adv. Usgaonkar is a Member of the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors of the Company.

Adv. Usgaonkaris B.A., LL.B and is a Senior Advocate, Bombay High Cout.
Adv. Usgaonkar holds directorship of the under stated other companies in India:

+  Directorin Marmagoa Shipping & Stevedoring Co. Pvt. Ltd., Devashri Investments Pvt. Lid., V. 5.
Dempo Mining Corporation Pvt. Lid., Dempo Industries Pvt. Ltd. and Govind Poy Oxygen Ltd.

Adv. Usgaonkar does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares in the
Company.

Adv. Usgaonkar is a director whose period of office is liable to determination by retirement of directors by
rotation under the erstwhile applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. In terms of Section 149 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Adv. Usgaonkar being eligible and offering himself
for appointment, is proposed to be appointed as an Independent Director for five consecutive years up to
thea fifth consecutive AGM of the Company to ba hald in the year 2019, not liable to retire by rotation. A notice
has been received from a member proposing Adv. Usgaonkar as a candidate for the office of Director of the
Company.

In the opinion of the Board, Adv. Usgaonkar fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made thereunder for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is independent
of the management. Copy of the draft letter for appointment of Adv. Usgaonkar as an Independent Director
setting out the terms and conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the
Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day.

The Board considers that his continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is
desirable to continue to avail services of Adv. Usgaonkar as an Independent Director,
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Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution in relation to appointment of Adv. Usgaonkar as an
Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

Except Adv. Usgaonkar, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concemed or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at
Itemn no. 7. This Explanatory Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under Clause 49 of the
Listing agreement with the Stock Exchange.

ITEM 8

Mr. Ashok N. Manjrekar is a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. He joined the Board of
Directors of the Company in  January, 2006. Mr. Manjrekar is the Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and a Member of the Audit Committes of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Mr. Manjrekar iz M. Tech. in Food Technology from U.D.C.T., Mumbai and is a Food and Mutition
Consultant.

Mr. Manjrekar has vast experience in development of Packaging, Mutrition, Microbiclogy, Quality
Assurance and other statutory requirements. He has in the past been associated with Glaxo and Heinz in
the Food Research & Development capacities,

Mr. Manjrekar does not hold any other directorship in any company in India, other than Hindustan Foods
Lid.

Mr. Manjrekar does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares in the
Company.

Mr. Manjrekar is a director whose period of office is liable to determination by retirement of directors by
rotation under the erstwhile applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. In terms of Section 149 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Manjrekar being eligible and offering himself
for appointment, is proposed to be appointed as an Independent Director for five consecutive years up to
the fifth consecutive AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2019, not liable to retire by rolation. A
notice has been received from a member proposing Mr. Manjrekar as a candidate for the office of Director
of the Company.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Manjrekar fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made thereunder for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is independent
of the management. Copy of the draft letter for appointment of Mr. Manjrekar as an Independent Director
satting out the terms and conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at
the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day.

The Board considers that his continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company and itis
desirable to continue to avail services of Mr. Manjrekar as an Independent Director.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution in relation to appointment of Mr. Manjrekar as an
Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

Except Mr. Manjrekar, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at

ltem no. 8. This Explanatory Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under Clause 49 of the
Listing agreemant with the Stock Exchange.

ITEMS

The members of the Company at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 27" March, 1996 approved
by way of an Ordinary Resolution under Section 293(1)(d) of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956
borrowings over and above the aggregate of paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company
provided that the total amount of such borrowings together with the amounts already borrowed and
outstanding at any point of time shall not be in excess of Rs. 10 crore (Rupees Ten crore).
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Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 requires that the Board of Directors shall not borrow money
in excess of the company's paid up share capital and free reserves, apart from temporary loans obtained
from the company's bankers in the ordinary course of business, except with the consent of the company
accorded by way of a special resolution.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has vide its General Circular no. 04/2014 dated March 25, 2014
clarified that the resolution passed under Section 293 of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 prior to
September 12, 2013 with reference to borrowings (subject to the limits prescribed) and/or creation of
security on assets of the company will be effective for a period of one year from the date of notification of
Section 180 of the Act which would be September 11, 2014,

In order to forses the future expansion of the business it is required to enhance the borrowing limits of the
Company from Rs. 10 Crore to Rs. 25 Crore.

It is, therefore, necessary that the members pass a Special Resolution under Section 180({1)(c) and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as set out at ltem No. 9 of the Motice, to enable the
Board of Directors to borrow money in excess of the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free
reserves of the Company. Approval of members is being sought to borrow money upto Rs. 25 crore
(Rupees Twenty Five crore) in excess of the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves of the
Company.

MNone of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concemed or
interested, financial or otherwise, in the resclution set out at [tem Mo, 9.

ITEM 10

In pursuance of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board shall appoint an individual who is a Cost Accountant in practice on the
recommendations of the Audit Committee, which shall also recommend remuneration for such Cost
Auditor. The remuneration recommended by the Audit Committee shall be considered and approved by the
Board of Directors and ratified by the shareholders.

On recommendation of Audit Committee at its meeting held on 19" May, 2014, the Board has considered
and approved appointment of Mr. Dilip M. Vengurlekar, CostAccountant, Panaji-Goa, for the conduct of the
Cost Audit of the Company's Food Processing manufacturing unit at Usgao, at a remuneration of
Rs.40,000/- (Rupees Forty Thousand only) plus service tax and out of pocket expenses for the Financial
Year ending March 31, 2015.

The Resolution at ltem no. 10 of the Notice is set out as an Crdinary Resolution for approval and ratification
by the members in terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concemed or
interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set outat ltem no. 10,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ganesh T. Argekar
Executive Director
Panaji, August 14, 2014
Registered Office:
Dempo House, Campal,
Panaji-Goa 403001

CIN: L15138GA1984PLC000601
Website: www.hflgoa.com
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors present the Twenty-Ninth Annual Report and the Audited Accounts of the Company for the
Six months period ended 31" March, 2014,

Financial Results:

The Financial Results of the Company for the period under review are as follows:

(% in Lacs)
For the Six For the Twelve
months ended meonths ended
31" March, 2014 30" September, 2013
Profit /(Loss) for the year before (49.72) (5.23)
Finance charges and depraciation 68.55 92.56
Finance charges {118.27) (97.79)
Profit /(Loss) before depreciation 14.68 2243
Depreciation (132.95) {120.22)

Profit {{Loss) carried to Balance Sheet

Change in Shareholding (Holding Company) due to the Scheme of Amalgamation of Dempo Foods
Pvt. Ltd. with Vanity Case India Pvt. Ltd.

During the year under review, Dempo Foods Pvi. Ltd., the Holding Company has merged / amalgamated in
Vanity Case India Pvt. Ltd. in terms of the Bombay High Court Order dated 22™ November, 2013.

Conseqguent to the above amalgamation, the merged entity, Vanity Case India Pvt. Ltd. will hold 74.45% of
the paid-up share capital of the Company and will be considered as "Promaoter” / (New Holding Company)
of Hindustan Foods Limited.

Company’s Activites:

During the period under report, the Company has continued to manufacture intermediate foods for third
parties. Your Company recorded a net turnover of Rs.318 lacs and loss after tax of Rs.133 lacs.

The Company has started commercial production of snack food "Kurkure' from February, 2014 for M/s.
Pepsico India Holdings Pvt. Lid.

The Company has entered into a Manufacturing & Supply Agreement with M/s. Nutricia International Pvt.
Lid. to manufacture Weaning Cereals - Complementary Foods, for a period of 5 years.

Dividend :

In view of loss for the period under report and accumulated losses of previous years, the Directors regret
their inability to recommend dividend.

Accreditation:
The Company continues to enjoy IS0 22000:2006 accreditation made by Bureau Veritas.
Public Deposits:

Your Company has not accepted or renewed any fixed deposits from the public during the period under
report.
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In terms of the Articles of Association of the Company, Dr. Asht Bhuja Prasad, Direclor, retires at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received requisite notice in writing from a member proposing Dr. Asht Bhuja Prasad for
appointment as an Independent Director under the Companies Act, 2013, not liable to retire by rotation.

The Company has also recelved requisite notices in writing from a member proposing to appoint Adv.
Sudin M. Usgaonkar and Mr. Ashok N. Manjrekar (currently Directors of the Company liable to retire by
rotation} for appointment as Independent Directors under the Companies Act 2013, not liable to retire by
rotation.

The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors proposed to be appointed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meating confirming that they meet with the criteria of independence as
prescribed both under sub-section (6) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and under Clause 49 of
the Listing agreement with the stock exchange.

In order to adhere to the new provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Soiru V. Dempo resigned as
Executive Director of the Company with effect from May 19, 2014, Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the
Company at their meeting held on May 19, 2014 appointed Mr. Sairu V. Dempo as an Additional Director
effective from May 19, 2014, Mr. Dempo holds office up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting
but is eligible for reappointment.

Conseguent to the resignation of Mr. Sciru V. Dempo as Executive Director of the Company, the Board of
Directors of the Company at their meeting held on May 19, 2014 appointed Mr. Ganesh T, Argekar as an
Additional Director and Whale-time Director with the designation “Executive Director” effective from May
19, 2014 for a period of three years. His appointment is subject to the approval of the Members of the
Company.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1958, your Directors hereby
state and confirm that:

a) In the preparation of accounts for the Six months period ended 31" March, 2014, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company at the end of Six months period and of the loss of the Company far the period
under review;

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adeguate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other iregularities; and

d) The Directors have prepared the accounts for the Six months period ended 31% March, 2014 on a going
concern basis.

Auditors :

The Auditors, R. Sundararaman & Co., Chartered Accountants, Chennai refire at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and have confirmed their availability within the limits of Section 139(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013,

The Board recommends their appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company

Particulars of Employees:
Mone of the employees of the Company was in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limit prescribed in the
Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 read with section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1958.
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Particulars of Conservation of Energy etc.:

In terms of Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 [as amended] and the Companies (Disclosure of
particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988, the additional information, as required, is
fumished as Annexure forming part of this Report,

Auditors Report :

In respect of the observations of the auditors in their report, the relevant financial notes are self-
explanatory.

Corporate Governance :

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, a Management Discussion and
Analysis Report and a report on Corporate Governance are provided in separate sections as a part of this
Annual Report. A Certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company certifying the Company's
compliance with the requirement of corporate govermnance in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
with the Stock Exchange is also annexed to the section on Corporate Governance.

Acknowledgments :

Your Directors also place on record their deep appreciation for the valuable support and guidance from
M/s. Vianity Case India Pvt. Ltd., the holding company from time to time as well as Bank of Maharashtra, the
bankers.

The Directors acknowledge the co-operation and contribution of the empioyees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ganesh T. Argekar
Executive Direcior
Panaji
Dated : 14" August, 2014

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Information under Section 217[1] [e] of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies [Disclosure of
Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors] Rules 1988, and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the
Six months period ended 31" March, 2014,

I Conservation of Energy:
1 Energy consumption: Energy consumption have been higher per unit of production due
toincrease in fuel rates and lower tonnage.
2. Total energy consumplion and energy consumption per unit of production are as under:
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(A) POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

1.  Electricity
a) Purchased Units
*  Total amount
*  Rate/Unit
* including Demand charges

b) Own Generation
Through Diesel Generator
Units

Uinits per Ltr.of Diesel Oil
Cost/Unit

2. Coal [Specify guality & where used]
Quantity (Tonnes)
Total Cost
Average Rate

3. Furmace Qil (H.S.D. for Brand Drier)
Quantity
Total Amount
Average Rate

Kwh

Rs./Kwh

Kwhi
Kwh
Rs./Kwh

L
Rs.
Rs.

4, Others [ internal generation (Please give details)

Quantity
Total Cost
Rate / Unit

(B) CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION

Standards -ifany ~  Current Year

{Products with details - Units)

Cereal based food products (tonnes)
Electricity (Units)

H.5.D. Qil (Units)

Coal [Specify quality]

Others (Specify)

Research and Development and Technology Absorption:

The Company is keeping abreast the developments in the extruder technology and has

assimilated the latest technologies in the related fields,

Foreign Exchange Earnings and QOutgeoings:

Earnings - Nil
Outgoings - Nil

Current year

180600
11,05,950
6.12

698490
3.57
16.87

13715
891,127
65.026

42291
427.04
1685.16
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS :

The Financial Year 2013-14 was for six months period, and ended on 31" March 2014. These six months
was also a challenging period for the Company. During the period under consideration, the Company
continued to manufacture intermediate foods for third parties. Full fledged trials were taken for Snack food
“Kurkure”. Commercial production for the same began in February 2014. The Company also signed an
agreement with M/s Nutricia International Private Limited for manufacture and finished packaging of their
brand FAREX in November 2013 for a period of 5 years. Trials for this were also conducted during the
period under consideration,. The Company also continued to cater to its earlier customer base for various
intermediate products which it has been doing for a long time. With commercial production of Kurkure In
place, and trials of Farex complete packing also successfully concluded, your company expects to utilise
the production capacities to maximum. The profitability is also expected to improve.

Your Company is having competent and qualified Food Technologists and Engineers, and takes various
initiatives to keep them updated on new technologies and knowledge, to achieve cost effectiveness
wherever possible.

The Company enjoys cordial relations with the employees.

Your Company has proper and adequate system of internal control to ensure that all assets are protected
and safeguarded. Your Company has well documented operating procedures and authorizations which
itself are adequate for internal controls. Adequale internal checks are built in to cover all financial
transactions with systematic delegation of authority.

The Company is also adopting to additional and specific internal contrals to all the individual customers
whenever they have asked for.

Some of the statements given in the above Management discussions and analysis about the Company's
projections, estimates or expectations may be “forward looking statements’. Actual results may differ
substantially from those expressed or implied statements. Your company undertakes no obligations to
publicly revise any forward looking statement to reflect future events or circumstances.,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Company's Philosophy in Corporate Governance.

The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance is founded upon a rich legacy of fair and
transparent governance practices. Transparency in all dealings, effective control and management of
organization, investor friendly attitude towards shareholders has been the basic objective of the corporate
governance of the Company.

This Report is for a period of six months (from 1% October, 2013 to 31" March, 2014).
|. Board of Directors:
a) Compesition of Board

The present Board consists of one Executive Director and five Non-Executive Directors. Out of the
non-executive Directors, three are independent directors,

The non-executive Directors with their diverse knowledge, experience and expertise bring in their
independent judgment fo the deliberations and decisions of the Board. Apart from the sitting fees
paid for attending Board/Commitiee Meelings, the non-executive Directors did not have any
material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company during the period under report.

The Company has a non-executive Chairman. The number of independent directors is more than
one third of the total number of Directors. The Company meets the requirements relating to the
composition of Board of Directors,

b) Otherprovisions as to Board and Committees

During the period under report, the Board of Directors met 2 times i.e. on 15" Movember, 2013 and
10™ February, 2014,

MNone of the Directors of the Board serve as Members of more than 10 commitiees nor do they chair
maore than 5 committees, as per the requirements of the Listing Agreement.

Detailed information is given in the table:

- No.of |  No.of | poeflosrd
: Diractor- | Membership
. Board Last ship In of Board of which the
: Name of Director Category Meetings | AGM Director is a
No. other | Committees
attend- | Attended Chair-persan
i compa- of other i ir
nies companies 0
1. | Shrinivas V. Dempo | Chairman (Non- 2 MNo 19* - -
Executive)
2. |Soiru V. Dempo Non-Executive 2 Yas g* 1 -
3. |A. B. Prasad MNon-Executive 2 Yes g 1 -
Independeant
4. | Sudin M. Non-Executive 2 Mo g - -
Usgaonkar Independeant
5. | Ashok N. Manjrekar | Non-Executive 2 Mo - - -
Independent
6. | Ganesh T, Executive - . - - -
Argekar™ Director

*Includes directorship held in private limited companies
** Appointed as Additional Director and Whaole-time Director with effect from May 19, 2014

G5
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c) Details of remuneration to the directors for the period under report:
The details of sitling fees paid during the financial period ended 31% March, 2014 are as follows:

Sr. No. Name of the Director Sitting Fees (Rs.)
1 Mr. Shrinivas V. Dempo 4,000
2 Mr. Soiru V. Dempo 4,000
3 Dr. A. B. Prasad 5,000
4 Adv. Sudin M. Usgaonkar 5,000
5 Mr. Ashok N. Manjrekar 5,000
d) Shareholding of Directors:

As on 31" March, 2014, Dr. A. B. Prasad holds 500 equity shares in the Company. None of the
remaining directors hold any shares in the Company.

e) Code of Conduct:

{iy The Board of Directors has laid down Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior
Management of the Company which is posted on the Company’s website www hflgoa.com.

{iy The Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed
compliance with tha Code applicable to them during the period ended 317 March, 2014 and
adeclaration to this effect signed by the Executive Director forms part of this report.

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, |, Ganesh T. Argekar,
Executive Director of Hindustan Foods Limited, declare that all Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed their compliance with the Code of Conduct
during the financial period ended 31" March, 2014,

Panaji-Goa. Ganesh T. Argekar
Date : 14" August, 2014 Executive Director
Il. Audit Committes:

a) The terms of reference and power of the Audit Committee are as per Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement and Section 292(A) of the Companies Act, 1956. The function of the Audit
Committee is as per Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange. These include review of
accounting and financial policies and procedures, review of financial reporting system,
adequacy of internal Control systems /internal audit function and risk management policies.

Qe
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b} TheAudit Committee comprises of three Independent Directors. Two meatings were held during
the period under report i.e. on 15" November, 2013 and 10" February, 2014. Other details are

as under:
Name Designation Number of meetings
attended
Dr. A. B. Prasad Chairman 2
Adv. Sudin M. Usgaonkar Member 2
Mr. Ashok M. Manjrekar Membar 2

. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

In the meeting of the Board of Directors held on August 14, 2014, in order to align with the new law
of the Companies Act, 2013, it was decided to rename the Committee from “Remuneration
Committee” to “Momination and Remuneration Committee”.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of the following members:

Name of the Member Designation
Mr. Shrinivas V. Dempo Member
Mr. Ashok N. Manjrekar Chairman
Dr. A. B. Prasad Member

During the year under report, no meeting of the committee was held.
IV. Share Transfer, Investors' Grievance and Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

in the meeting of the Board of Directors held on August 14, 2014, in order to align with the new law
of the Companies Act, 2013, it was decided to rename the Commitiee from “Share Transfer and
Investors' Grievance Committee” to "Share Transfer, Investors' Grievance and Stakeholders
Relationship Committea”.

Applications for transfer of shares held in physical form are received at the office of the RTAof the
Company. The shares received by the Company/RTA for registration of transfers are processed
by the RTA (generally within 10 days of receipt) and transferred expeditiously and the Share
Certificate(s) are returmned to the shareholder(s) by registered post. The Board Committes notes /
ratifies the approved transfer / transmission / ransposilion of shares and looks into the redressal
of Investors' grievances, if any, as and when required. Mr. Shrinivas V. Dempo as the Chairman
and Mr. Soiru V. Dempo along with Dr. A, B. Prasad as membears comprise the Share Transfer,
Investors' Grievance and Stakeholders Relationship Committee and they were present at all
meetings of the Committea.

During the period under raport, the Share Transfer, Investors’ Grievance and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee met five times on 1 November, 2013, 15" November, 2013, 27"
December, 2013, 21" February, 2014 and 21" March, 2014,

Mr. G. K. 5. Kerkar, General Manager (Corporate Affairs) is the Compliance Officer of the
Company under Clause 47 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange.

Details of complaints received, number of shares transferred during the period under review as
well as average time taken for effecting these transfers are highlighted in the "Shareholder
Information” section of the Annual Report.

an
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V. General Meetings:
The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under;

Particulars Date Venue
- : " Dempo House, Campal,
26" Annual General Meeting 207 September, 2011 Panaii, Goa - 403 001,
27" Annual General Meeting 18" December, 2012 - As above —
28" Annual General Meeting 14" December, 2013 - As above -

Mo Special resolutions were passed at these Meetings.

Vli. Disclosures:
Pursuant to Sub-clause VIl (2) of Clause 49, the Company confirms that it has complied with all
mandatory requirements prescribed in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Vil. Code for Prevention of Insider Trading:

In compliance with the SEBI Regulations on Prevention of Insider Trading, the Company has
instituted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading for its managament, staff and relevant
business associates. The Code lays down guidelines, which advises them on procedures to be
followed and disclosures to be made while dealing with the shares of the Company.

Vill. CEO/CFO Certification:

The CEQ/CFO Certification of the financial statements for the six months period, is enclosed at the
end of the report.

1X. Means of Communication:

The quarterly unaudited financial results were published in the Financial Express/The Navhind Times
(English Dailies) and Navprabha (Marathi Daily). The results were also displayed on the Company’s
website at www.hflgoa.com.
The Company has not made any presentations to institutional investors or to analysts.
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report is provided separately as a part of this Annual
Report.

X Shareholder Information:

29" Annual General Meeting

(i) Day, Date, Time and Venue . Salurday, 27" Septermber, 2014 at 10.30 a.m.
atl Dempo House, Campal, Panaji-Goa. 403001.
(i) Current Financial Year ¢ 1" October, 2013 to 31" March, 2014
(ii) Date of Book Closure . Tuesday, 23" September, 201410
Saturday, 27" September, 2014 (both
days inclusive)
(iv) Dividend Paymant Date :  There was no dividend recommendation and
hence not applicable.
(v) Listing ¢ The Bombay Stock Exchange Lid. (BSE)
(vi) Stock Code
BSE 519126
Demat ISIN in CDSL & NSDL INE254MN01018.
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(vii) Market price Information :

(i)

(ix)

Month Bombay Stock Exchange Lid. (BSE)
High Low Volume
October 2013 20.63 11.80 7,776
November 2013 21.70 18.70 2,961
December 2013 19.80 13.15 5,039
January 2014 22.57 13.15 5,551
February 2014 28.00 22.40 13,695
March 2014 3r.30 25.95 15,003

Source; www.bseindia.com
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Registrars and Share Transfer Agents :

Members are requested to correspond with the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents—

Link Intime India Put. Lid.

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,
L.B.5. Marg, Bhandup (West),
Mumbai 400078

Ph.: (022) 25846870

Fax; (022) 25846860

Email: mt helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Share Transfer System:

Share transfers in physical form can be lodged with the Company's Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents. The Company in order to improve the quality of services to investors,
process share transfer requests within the stipulated time and for reasons of convenience,
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has given powers to its Registrar and Share Transfer Agents to approve and effect the
transmission / fransfer / franspesition of shares and give effect to dematerialisation requests.

As per the regquirement of clause 47 (c) of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange,
the Company has obtained the half yearly certificates from a Company Secretary in Practice
for due compliance of share transfer formalities.

The Company conducts a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit on a quarterly basis in
accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) requirements. The Audit

Reports for the financial period under report have been filed with the Stock Exchange within
one month of the end of each quarter.

SERI vide its circular dated 20" May, 2009, made its mandatory for the transferee(s) to
fumnish a copy of PAN card to the Company/RTAs for registration of transfer of shares, for
securities market transactions and off-market / private transactions involving transfer of
shares in physical form.

(x) Distribution of Shareholding :
Distribution Schedule as on 31" March, 2014 :

No. of % of

No. of Shares Siarsloideca Shareholders Mo. of Shares % to Total

1 to 500 5970 96.60 8,711,325 17.43
501 to 1000 144 233 1,10,704 2.1
1001 to 2000 39 0.63 53,904 1.08
2001 to 3000 9 0.15 23,090 0.46
3001 to 4000 4 0.07 13,175 0.26
4001 to 5000 5 0.08 23,274 0.47
5001 to 10000 5 0.08 33,250 0.67
10001and above 4 0.07 38,711,278 77.43
Total 6,180 100.00 50,00,000 100.00

Distribution of Shareholding (Categorywise) as on 31" March, 2014:

Category Mo. of MNo. of % of
Shareholders | Shares Shareholding
Promoters, Directors, their relatives & Associates 3| 3723294 7447
Financial Institution / Banks 2 7,200 0.14
Bodies Corporate 34 87,770 1.76
Non-Resident Individuals (NRI's) 308 85,000 1.70
Resident Individuals 5,833| 10,968,736 21.83
Total 6,180 50,00,000 100.00




Sharehosldng Faftem as on March 11, 2004

(xi) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:

Az on 31° March, 2014, 77.85% of the Company's paid-up capital representing 38,92 494
shares were held in dematerialized form as compared to 77.28% of the Company's pald up
capital representing 38,64, 144 shares as on 30" September, 2013.
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{xii) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date
and likely impact on equity:
- Nil -

{xiiiy  Plant Location:

Usgano,
Ponda-Goa 403407
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(xiv)  Address for correspondence:

For transfer / dematenalization of shares and any other query relating to the shares of the
Company =

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,

L.B.5. Marg, Bhandup (West),

Mumbai 400078,

Ph.: (022) 25946970

Fax: (022) 25946069

Email: mthelpdesk@linkintime.co.in

For investors assistance [ complaints, if any —

Mr. G. K. 5. Kerkar

General Manager (Corporate Affairs)
Hindustan Foods Limited

Dempo House, Campal,

Panaji - Goa 403001.

Tel.: (0832) 2224556

Fax: (0832) 2225008

Email: hflinvestorrelationsi@dempos.com

Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement also requires disclosures of adoption by the Company of non-
mandatory requirements specified in the said clause, the implementation of which is discretionary on the
part of the Company. Accordingly, the adoption of non-mandatory requirements is given below:

1. The Board:

Has a non-execulive Chairman, and his office with required facilities is maintained at his own
expense and is not provided and maintained by the Company.

Mo Policy has been fixed on tenure of Independent Directors.
2. Remuneration Committee:

As stated earlier, the Board has already set up a Nomination and Remuneration Committee
consisting of only non-executive Directors. Delalls regarding composition of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committes are provided elsewhera in this report.

3. Shareholders’ Rights:
The half-yearly financial results are not sent to the shareholders.
4, Audit Qualifications:
During the financial period under review, there were no audil qualifications in the financial

statemeants.

5. Training of Board Members:
Not yet adopted by the Company.

6. Mechanism for evaluating non-executive Board Members:
Mot yet adopted by the Company.

7. Whistlie Blower Policy:
The Company does not have any Whistle Blower Policy.

@



Ta,
The Members,
Hindustan Foods Limited

AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Hindustan Foods
Limited for the six months period ended 31" March, 2014 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement of the said Company with the Stock Exchange.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company, for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

We certify that the Company has complied in all material respect with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further stale that compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency of effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For R. SUNDARARAMAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No : 0042195)

5. SRIRAM
Partner
Membership Mo : 202813

Place : Panjim
Date : August 14, 2014




Hindustan Foods Limited

CEO & CFO CERTIFICATE UNDER CLAUSE 49(V) OF THE LISTING
A NT

We, Ganesh T. Argekar, Executive Director and G. K. S. Kerkar, General Manager (Corporate Affairs) of
Hindustan Foods Limited, ("Company”) hereby certify that :-

(a) We have reviewed financial statement and the cash flow statement of the Company for the Six
months period ended 31" March, 2014 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief.

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii} these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the financial period, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of
conducl.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of intemnal control systems of the Company
pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such intemal controls, if any, of which we are aware and
the staps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:
(i) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the financial period,

(i) Significant changes in accounting policies during the financial period and the same have
been disclosaed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(iil} Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein,
if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal
control system over financial reporting.

Ganesh T. Argekar G. K. 5. Kerkar
Executive Director General Manager (Corporate Affairs)

Place: Panaji-Goa.
Date : 14" August, 2014
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AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of HINDUSTAN FOODS LIMITED, Panaji, Goa, as at
31" March 2014, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for
the period ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial parformance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956
(“the Act”) read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 September 2013 of the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. This responsibility includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view are free of material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards of Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal control
relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion,

Opinien

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
subject to paragraphs 6(ii)(e), 6(ii)(f) and 6{ii}(g) and the consequent effect thereof on the assets,
liabilities and cumulative loss of the Company and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India

a) Inthecase of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31" March 2014;

b) Inthecase of the Profitand Loss Account, of the Loss of the Company for the period ended on that
date; and

¢) Inthecase of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the period ended on that date.

@
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Emphasis of Matter

The Company is a Sick Industrial Company under Section 3({1) of the Sick Industrial Companies
(Special Provisions) Act, 1985 and has incurred cash losses for the current accounting year and
previous year with negative networth as on 31" March 2014. Considering the various ongoing
measures taken for the rehabilitation of the Company, the Accounts are presented on the principles
applicable to a going concemn.

QOur opinion is nol qualified in respect of the above matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(i) As reguired by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by Central
Government in terms of Section 227[4A] of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure
hereto a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

(i) Asrequired by Section 227(3) of the Act, we report that :

a)
b)
c)

d)

e)

g)

h)

Place : Panjim

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law, have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement
daalt with by this report comply with the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies
Act, 1956 read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 September 2013 of the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

Mo provision for debts considered doubtful of recovery amounting to Rs. 2,49,55,257/-
has been made (Refer Note 15)

Share issue, advertisement & sales promotion and Product launch expenses

aggregating to Rs. 2,89,56,033/- have not been absorbed and carried forward under
Miscellaneous Expenditure (Refer Note 13)

Depreciation amounting to Rs. 67,37,828/- on certain Fixed Assets has not been
considered in the earlier years (Refer Note 32)

On the basis of the written representation received from the Directors as on 31" March 2014
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the Directors is

disqualified as on 31" March 2014 from being appointed as a Director in terms of clause (g) of
sub section (1) of Section 274 of the Companies Act, 19586,

For R. SUNDARARAMAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No : 004219S)

5. SRIRAM

Date : May 19, 2014 Partner

Membership No : 202813
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ANNEXURE TO AUDITOR'S REPORT
Referred to in Paragraph 6(i) in our Report of even date

On the basis of the records produced to us for our verification / perusal, such checks as we considered
appropriate and in terms of information and explanation given o us on our enquires, we state that:

1. Inrespectoffixed assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b} The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the period. We have
beean informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢} The Company has not disposed off any substantial part of fixed assets during the period and the
going concern status of the Company is not affected.

2. Inrespectof inventories :
a) The stock of inventory has been physically verified by the management at the close of the pericd.

b} Inouropinion, the procedures followed by the management for physical verification of inventories
are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

c) The Company has maintained proper records of inventories. As explained to us, the
discrepancies noticed between physical verification of stocks and book records were not
material, and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

3.  In respect of loans, secured or unsecured, granted or taken by the Company to / from companies,
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Secticn 301 of the Companies Act,
1956

a) The Company has not taken loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

b} The Company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956,

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate
internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business
for the purchase of inventory, fixed assets, sale of goods and services. During the course of our audit,
no major weaknesses have been observed in the internal controls.

5. Inrespect of transactions covered under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 :
a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
made in pursuance of contracts or arrangements, that needed to be entered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, have been so entered.

b} Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, these transactions
have been made at reasonable prices having regard to the prevailing market prices at that time.

6. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public requiring compliance of Section 584 and
Section 58A4 of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules framed there under.

7. Although the Company has no formalized internal audit system, its internal control procedures ensure
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10.

n.

12.

13

14,

15.

16.

reasonable internal checking of financial and other records and this can be considered adequate
under the circumstances.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section
209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of the business activities carried out by the
Company.

In respect of statutory dues :

a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees state insurance, sales tax, custom duty,
excise duty, cess, service tax and other material statutory dues applicable toit.

b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of sales tax, custom duty, excise duty, service tax and cess were in arrears, as at 31°
March 2014 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except Rs.
51.10 lacs towards Invesior Educalion and Protection Fund under Section 205C of the
Companies Act, 1956.

¢} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of sales tax,
customn duty, excise duty, service tax and cess, which have not been deposiled on account of
any dispute except for the following :

Year Detalls Amount (Rs.) Pending Before
Cenvat Credit Office of The Superintendent of
2013-14 claimed on 14,64, 117/- Central Excise & Service Tax,
Capital Goods Usgaon

The Company is having accumulated losses in excess of 50% of its net worth as on 31" March 2014,
The Company has incurred cash losses during the current financial period. But there are no cash
losses in the previous financial year.

According to the information and explanations given and the records examined by us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions, banks or debenture holders. A sum of
Rs. 51.10 lacs remains unclaimed by the debenture holders.

The Company has not granted any loans or advance on the basis of security by way of pledge of
shares, debentures or other securities.

The Company is not a chit fund, or a nidhi, mutual fund / society. Therefore the provisions of clause 4
(xiii) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2003 are not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other
investments. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4 (xiv) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order
2003 are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given guarantee for loans taken by others from Banks and Financial Institutions, the terms and
conditions whereof are prima facie prejudicial to the Company.

As par the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not taken amy term loan.
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17.

18.

14,
. The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue during the period.
21.

Place : Panjim

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that funds raised on short term basis have not been used for
long term investment and vice versa, during the period.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in
the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, during the period.

The Company has not issued any debentures during the period,

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried oul in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud on or by the
Branch, noticed or reported during the year nor have been informed of such case by the management.

For R. SUNDARARAMAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No : 004219S)

S. SRIRAM

Date : May 19, 2014 Partner

Membership No : 202813
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31" MARCH,2014

{All Amount in Rupees)

S.No | Particulars Note No. As At As At
J1st March,2014 | 30th Sept, 2013
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders Funds
{a) Share Capital 3 6,60,00,000 6,60,00,000
(b) Reserves & Surplus 4 (9,05,28,830) (7.72,32,954)
2 Mon Current Liabilities
{a) Long Term Borrowings 5 15,74,30,967 15,26,72 967
{b) Other Long Term Liabilities <] 1,37,75,963 31,688,027
{b) Long Term Provisions T 8,04 334 8,18 409
3 Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings 8 56,61,856 50,44,323
(b) Trade Payables ) 1,60,41,510 1,59,06,712
{c) Other Current Liabilities 10 3,08,88,144 1,86,64,039
Total 20,01,63,943 18,50,61,523
[} ASSETS
1 Mon Current Assets
{a) Fixed Assels
(i) Tangible Assets " 8,12,00,906 3,59,21,969
{ii) Intangible Assets 1 1
(iii} Capital Work in Progress 3,12,25 961 46,5,02,002
{b) Long Term Loans and Advances 12 22,950,086 16,1.60,863
(c) Other Non Current Assets 13 2,89,56,033 28,0.56.033
2 Current Assets
{a) Inventories 14 1,22,34,233 1,17,67,214
{b) Trade Receivables 15 3,39,23,341 3,69,35409
{c) Cash and Bank Balances 16 3,05,648 8,91,220
(d) Short Term Loans and Advances 17 88,59,667 T7.40,741
{e) Other Current Asseils 18 2,08.068 1,686,073
Total 20,01,63,943 18,50,61,523
Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts 1 &2
Vide our Report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Direciors
For R. Sundararaman & Co.,
Charterad Accountants
5. SRIRAM Shrinivas V. Dempa Ganesh T. Argekar
Partner Chairman Executive Direclor
Membership No : 202813
Placa: Panjim

Date: 19t May, 2014

GO
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31" MARCH,2014
(All Amount in Rupees)

S.No | Particulars Mote No. & months Ended 12 months Ended
31st March 2014 | 30th September 2013
Revenue from Operations 18 33148917 6,3592.816
Less : Excise Duty 13,786,652 35,73,227
317,712,265 6,00,19,689
] Other Income 20 27 549 285713
[} Total Revenue [ 1+1I) 3,17,99.913 6,03,05,402
v Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed A 1,69,95 367 3,18,83,167
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods & WIP 22 (18,97 628) (1,72,902)
Employee Benefils Expense 23 79,29,744 14T 42,747
Finance Cosls 24 68,655,334 92 56,074
Depreciation 14,68 268 2242927
Other Expenses 25 1,37.44,703 1,39,23,628
Tolal Expenses 4,50,95,788 7,18,75,646
v Profit before Tax { lll - IV) (1,32,95,875) (1,15,70,244)
Wi Tax Expense
(a) Current Tax . .
{B) Prior Year Tax - 4 52 257
Vil Profit after Tax (V - V1) (132,95,875) (1,20,22,500)
Wil Eamings per Equity Share (of Rs. 10V- sach)
Basic (2.66) (2.40)
Diluted (5.32) (240)
Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts 182
Vide our Report of even date For and an behalf of Board of Directors
For R. Sundararaman & Co.,
Charlered Accountants
5. SRIRAM Shrinivas V. Dempo Ganesh T. Argekar
Partner Chairman Executive Director

Membership No ; 202813

Place: Panjim
Date:  1%th May, 2014
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31" MARCH 2014

8.Mo| Particulars Six months ended Twelve months ended
J1st March, 2014 30th September,2013
A | Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before Tax {1,32,95,875) (1,15,70,244)
Adjustments
fath 14,68 268 2242 927
Interest Received (23,651) (44 68&6)
Cradit Batances written back (1,567) (556)
Interest / Finance Charges 6:8.55,334 92 56,078
Assets Written off 245477 :
B85.43,862 78,358 | 11532121
(47,52,013) {38,122)
ct in Working Capt
Adjustrments for (Increase) | Decrease in Operating Assets
Inventories (4.67,019) 1491517
Trade Receivables 30,12,088 {29,51,044
Short Term Loans & Advances (18,79,452) (61,17,933
Long Term Loans & Advances 1,39.10,777 (1,59 84 076
Other Mon Current Assels - -
Adjustments for Increasa | (Decressa) in Operating Liabilies
Other Long Term Liabilities 1,06,87 935 31,88,027
Trade Payables 1,36, 365 1,01, 22 467
Other Current Liabilities 1,22.24.108 |!5Er.551g
Long Term Provisions 75925 3,76,00,704 24,373 | (1,02 85,320)
Cash generated from Operations 3,28,48,691 (1,03,23.442)
Direct Taxes (Net) {2,39,474) (17,073)
Met Cash Flow from Operting Activities 3,26,00,217 (1,03,40,515)
B | Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets (3.17,16,642) (4,67,55,748)
Sale of Fixed Assals - 162,205
Interest Income 1,654 2,729
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (3,17,14,988) (4,65,90,814)
C | Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Interest | Finance Charges (68,55,334) (92,56,078)
Increase in Share Capital - -
Leng Term Borrowings (Net) 6,71,79 806
Short Term Bomowings (Met) 6,117,533 {6,91,199)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities {14,79,801) 5,72,32,529
Met Increase | (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (5,85,572) 301,200
Opening Balance in Cash & Cash Equivalents 642,431 341,230
Closing Balance in Cash & Cash Equivalents 56,850 642431
Viide our Report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For R. Sundararaman & Co,,
Chartered Accountants
5. SRIRAM Shrinivas V. Dempo Ganesh T. Argekar
Partner Chairman Executive Director
Membearship No : 202813
Place: Panjim
Date:  19th May, 2014
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD

1l

ENDED 31" MARCH, 2014

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Hindustan Foods Ltd (the Company”) was incorporated in the year 1984 and is engaged in the
business of manufacturing Cereal Based Foods with its domicile presence in Goa.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES :

i} Accounting Conventions:
The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual
basis and in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian
GAAP).The said Financial statements comply with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
19586 (the Act) and the mandatory Accounting Standards notified by the Central Government of
India under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006,

The Company is a Sick Industrial Company under Section 3(1) of the Sick Industrial Companies
(Special Provisions) Act, 1985 and has incurred cash losses for the current accounting year and
the previous year with negative networth as on 31" March 2014. Considering the various ongoing
measures taken for the rehabilitaion of the Company, the Accounts are presented on the
principles applicable to a going concern.

ii} FixedAssets:
Fixed Assels are siated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided on
straight line method at the rates and in the manner specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies
Act, 1956,

ili) Inventories:
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or the net realizable value.

iv) Revenue Recognition :
Revenue from sales is recognized on dispatch of goods from the factory.

Revenue from Processing Charges is recognized on production of processed goods for the
Principal.

v) Employee Benefits :

a) Short Term Employee Benefits:
Short term employee benefits including accumulated compensated absences determined
as per company’s policy/scheme are recognized as expense based on expected obligation
on undiscounted basis.

b) Defined Contributions:
Fixed contributions to the Superannuation Fund which is administered and managed by Life
Insurance Corporation of India and Fixed contributions to Employees State Insurance
Corporation (ESIC) are charged to profitand loss  account.

The Company also contributes to a government administered Provident and Pension Fund
on behalf of its employees, which are charged to profit and loss account.

c) Defined Benefit:
The Liability for Gratuity to employees as at Balance sheet date is determined on the basis
of actuarial valuations and is funded to a Gratuity Fund administered and managed by Life
Insurance Corporation of India. The Liability thereofis paid and absorbed in the accounts.

€
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Contributions to Provident Fund are charged to profit and loss accounts and are remitted to

an approved exempted trust.
d) Longterm Compensated absences:

In respect of long term portion of compensated absences (Leave benefits), the liability is
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation and is provided for accordingly.

vi) Borrowing Costs:
Bormowing Costs on specific loans atfributable to the acquisition or construction of asset are
capitalized. All other borrowing costs are accounted in Profit & Loss Account,
vii) Deferred Tax:
Deferred Tax is recognized on all timing differences subject lo the consideration of prudence.
viii) Miscellaneous Expenditure ;
Share issue, Sales promotion and product launch expenditure have not been written off due to
inadequacy of profit.
Note As at 31stMarch, 2014 As at 30th Sept, 2013
No. | Particulars Number Rs. Mumber Rs.
3 Shareholder's Funds - Share Capital
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs. 104-each 50,00,000 |5,00,00,000 50,00,000 5,00,00,000
9% Redeemable, Non Convertible Preference
Shares of Rs. 100/- each 200,000 |2,00,00,000 200,000 2,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed & Fully paid-up
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 50,00,000 |5,00,00,000 50,00,000 | 5,00,00,000
9% Redesmable, Non Convertible Preference
Shares of Rs, 100/- each 1,60,000 | 1,60,00,000 1,60,000 1,60,00,000
Total 51,60,000 |6,60,00,000 51,60,000 6,60,00,000
iy Disclosure of number of shares outstanding for each class of shares as at
As at 31stMarch, 2014 As at 30th Sept, 2013
Particulars Mumber Rs. Mumber Rs.
a) Equity Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 50,00,000 |5,00,00,000 50,00,000 5,00,00,000
Shares autstanding al the end of the year 50,00,000 |5,00,00,000 50,00,000 5,00,00,000
b) Preference Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,60,000 | 1.60,00,000 1,60,000 1,60,00,000
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 160,000 | 1,60,00,000 1,60,000 1,60,00,000
i) Terms and Rights attached to Shares

The Company has two class of shares, The Equity Shares have a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of Equity
Share is entitled to one vole per share. The Preference Shares have par value of Rs. 100V- per share and carmy dividend of
9% per annum from the date of allotment. The dividend shall be payable at the time of declaration of dividend on Equity
Shares, The Preference Shares shall be redesmed not iater than 19 years from the date of issue.

GO
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In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive any of the remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution shall be in proportion fo the equity
shares held by the shareholders.
i)  Disclosure of more than 5% sharehalding
MName of the Shareholder Asat31st March, 2014 As at 30th Sept, 2013
No.of Equity | % Holding | No.of Equity # Helding
Shares held Shares held
M/s. Dempo Foods Private Lid - - 37,22 294 T4.44%
Ms. Vanity Case India Private Limited 722,294 T4.44% - -
Mote : M. Dempo Foods Private Limited was merged in M/s. Vanity Case (India) Private Limited vide Bombay
High Court Order dated November 22, 2013.
As at 31st March, 2014 As at 30th Sept, 2013
No.ofPref | % Holding No. of Pref % Holding
Shares held Shares held
M/s. V. 5. Dempo Hoddings Private Limited 160,000 100.00% 1,60,000 100.00%
{All Amount in Rupees)
Note | Particulars Period Ended Year Ended
No. 31st March 2014 30th Sept. 2013
4 Reserves & Surplus
Capital Reserve
Opening & Closing Balance 4,804 4,800
Surplus
Opening Balance (7,72,37,755) (6,52,15,254)
Add : Net Profit/ (Loss) for the cument year (1,32 95,875) (1,20,22 500)
Closing Balance (9,05,33,630) (7,72,37,754)
Total {9,05,28,830) (7,72,32,954)
5 Long Term Borrowings
Secured Loans
Loans from V S Dempo Holdings Private Limited 10,39,01,967 10,21,43 967
{The above loan is at interest rate of 12%)
Loans from V S Dempo Holdings Private Limitad 3,96,83,000 3,96,83,000
{The above loan is interest fres)
Unsecured Loans
Loan from Marmagoa Shipping & Stevedoring Co Pvi Lid 12,50,000 12,50,000
{The above loan is interest free)
Loan from Dempo Industries Private Limited 95,96,000 85,96,000
{The above loan is at interest rate of 10%)
Loan from Motown Investment Private Limited 30,00,000 -
(The above loan is at interest rate of 12%)
Total 15.74,30,967 15,26,72,967




Hindustan Foods Limited

(All Amount in Rupees)

Note | Particulars Period Ended Year Ended
No. 31st March 2014 30th Sept. 2013
6 Other Long Term Liabilities
Creditors for Capital purchases 1,37,75,963 31,88,027
Total 1,37,75,963 31,88,027
T Long Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Bensfits 894334 818,409
Total 8,94,334 8,186,408
8 Short Term Borrowings
Secured
Loans repayable on demand from Bank
- Cash Credit from Bank of Maharashtra 16,21 540 -
(Secured by hypothecation of stock and book debts)
- Cash Credit from Bank of Maharashira 40,40, 316 50,44,323
(Secured by pledge of fixed deposits of V S Dempo
Hoddings Private Limited)
Total 56,61,856 50,44 323
§ Trade Payables
Trade Payables 1,60,41,510 1,59,06.712
Total 1,60,41,510 1,59,06,712
10 Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Liabilities including Withholding taxes 62,561 157,225
Other Liabilities 2,22 44 422 1,58,81,269
Accrued Employee Benefits 6,22 BaT 964,186
Accrued Expenses 19,01,102 16,61,359
Advances from Customers 60,57 422 .
Total 3,08,88,144 1,86,64,039
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Hindustan Foods Limited

(All Amount in Rupees

Note | Particulars Period Ended Year Ended
No. 31st March 2014 30th Sept. 2013
12 Long Term Loans and Advances
Capital Advances 20,173,299 1,59,84,076
Security Deposits
(Unsecured, Considered Good) 1,76,787 1,76,787
Total 22,50,086 1,61,60,863
13 Other Non Gurrent Assets
Misc Expenditura not written off
- Product Launch Expenses 39,48 495 39,48.495
- Share Issue Expenses 34 66,498 3466498
- Adverisment & Sales Promolion Expenses 2,15.41,040 21541040
Total 2,89,56,033 2,89,56,033
14 Inventories
Raw Materials 70,60,008 8328 675
Packing Materials 982 634 888,10
Stores & Consumables 17,69,501 20,06,185
Finished Goods - 543,252
Work in Progress 24 22 D60 -
Total 1,22,34,231 1,17,67,214
15 Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding &
manths (from the date they ane dus for payment)
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 24955257 246 26,009
Less : Provision made - -
2,49 55 257 2,46 26,099
Trade Receivables outstanding for a period of less than 6
maonths (from the date they are due for payment)
Unsecured, Considered Good 89 68,064 1,23,09,310
Total 3,39.23,34 3,69,35,409
16 Cash and Bank Balances
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
a) Cash on Hand 26,953 15,868
b) Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 20,905 B,26,563
56,859 642431
(i) Others
Mangin Money 248,789 248,789
248,789 248,789
Total 3,05,648 8,91,220
17 Short Term Loans and Advances
{Unsecured, Considered Good)
Balances with Government Authorities 81,19,444 61,61,229
Prepaid Expenses 272484 2,09,989
Tax Deducted at Source 994,276 T.54,802
Advance o Emioyees 73,500 2,35,901
Advance to Suppliers 3,99 963 378,820
Total 98,59,667 T7.40,741
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(All Amount in Rupees)

Note | Particulars Period Ended Year Ended
No, 31st March 2014 30th Sept. 2013
18 Current Assets - Other Current Assets

Interast Accrued on Deposits 208,069 1,86,073

Total 2,08,069 1,86,073
19 Revenue from Operations

Sale of Products 231,25,153 591,753,014

Sale of Services

- Processing Charges 09,74 873 33,97 517

Other Operating Revenue

- Sale of Scrap 47 224 10,21,829

- Credit Balances written back 1,567 556

Total 33148917 6,35,92,916
20 Other Income

Interest from Banks 23,651 44,145

Interest from Others - 541

Miscellaneous Income 3,998 241,027

Total 27,649 2,851
P3| Cost of Materials Consumed

Opening Stock of Raw Materials 83,28 674 90,55,036

Add: Purchases 1,57 26,731 3,11,56,805

2.40,55,405 4,021,841

Less : Closing Stock of Raw Materals 70,60,038 83,28.674

Total 1,69,95,367 31883167

Details of Raw Material Consumed

Cereals and Food Grains 1,69,95,367 3,18,83,167

Total 1,69,95,367 3,18,83,167

Details of Raw Material Inventory

Cereals and Food Grains T0.60,038 83,268,674

Total 70,60,038 83,28,67T4
2 Changas in Inventories of Finished Goods

Opening Stock

Finished Goods 5,24 432 351,530

Work in Progress = -

Closing Stock

Finished Goods - 5,24 432

Work in Progress 24,22 D60 =

Total (18,97 628) {1,72,802)

Details of Inventory in Finished Goods

Weaning Food - 5,24.432

Total - 524,432
! Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries & Incentives 64,711,310 1,19,29.230

Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 587,021 19,22 885

Staff Welfare Expenses 87414 8.90,632

Total 79,29,744 147 42,747




Hindustan Foods Limited

(All Amount in Rupees)

Note | Particulars Period Ended Year Ended
No. 315t March 2014 30th Sept. 2013
24 Finance Cost
Interest Expense
- To Banks 2,28 825 5,80,375
- To Others 6531473 B5.B2,787
Bank Charges 85,036 92 806
Total 68,55,334 82,56,078
25 Other Expenses
(i) Manufacturing and Operating Cosis
Consumption of Stores & Consumables 14,94 564 532242
Consumption of Packing Material 25,27 443 17,711,718
Power & Fuel 36,709,553 5292676
Water Charges 1,87.240 3,48 967
Freight Inwards 1,93,726 3,16,282
Repairs & Maintenance - Shop Floar 3,065,982 295625
Sundry Production Expenses 392,843 76,266
87.81.352 86,33,776
(ii) Administration
Rent, Rates & Taxes 165,923 163,287
Insurance 87,319 162,510
Travelling & Conveyance 784,456 123,272
Repairs & Maintenance - Others 18,51,585 12,30,148
Printing & Stationary 142,763 1,718,531
Postage & Cousier 1,356,485 95,961
Telephone & Internet Expense 44,079 88467
Legal & Professional Charges 168,978 3,198,214
Audil Fees 45,000 62,528
Directors Sitfing Fees 24250 40,000
Security Charges 7.14,365 920179
Loss on Sale of Assels - 78,358
Fixed Assets Written Of 245477 -
Other Miscellaneous Expenses 3,56,937 721,474
47,77.616 51,83,930
(iii) Selling & Distribution
Freight Charges(Outward) - 36,500
Sefling Expenses 1,17.135 54,422
1,71.735 90822
(iv) Others
Donation 8,000 15,000
B,000 15,000
Total 1,37.44,703 1,39,23,628
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OTHER NOTES :

26. Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the Company by Excise Department, disputed and not accepted —Rs. 14,64,117/-.

Bank Guarantees issued by bankers on behalf of the Company Rs.28,35,000/- (Previous Year- Rs.
28,35,000/-). Bank Guarantees for Rs. 25,00,000/- are secured by pledge of fixed deposilts of M/s. V 5
Dempo Holdings Private Limited of equivalent amount.

27. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of
advance) is Rs. 50 lacs (previous year Rs. 150 lacs).

28. Loanfrom M/s. V S Dempo Holdings Private Limited is zecured by charge on Fixed Assets of the Company.

29. Cash Credit Rs. 20 Lacs from Bank of Maharashtra is secured by hypothecation of stock and book debts.
Cash Credit of Rs. 50 Lacs from Bank of Maharashtra is secured by pledge of fixed deposits of M/s. V S
Dempo Holdings Private Limited.

30. Deposit with Banks includes Rs.2, 48, 789/- under lien towards guarantees given on behalf of the Company
(Previous Year Rs.2 48, T89/-).

31. To comply with the requirement of the Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006, which
became effective from 2™ October, 2006, the Company requested its suppliers to confirm whether they are
covered as Micro , Small or Medium enterprise as is defined in the said Act. As the Company did not receive
any communication from its suppliers informing their coverage as such enterprise, it is considered that none
of them are covered as such enterprise under the said Act.

32. Depreciation on Plant & Machinery and Elecirical Installation does not include an amount of Rs.67,37,828/-
not provided for in previous years, when the factory was not in operation.

33. Remuneration toAuditors ;

AuditFess : 30,000

TaxAudit : 5,000
Others © 10,000
45,000

34. No provision for Income tax (Current) has been made in the absence of taxable income for the year.

35. The Accounting Standard 22, Accounting for Taxes on Income issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India has become applicable to the Company from 01.04.2001 and to comply with the same
the Company reviewed its Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities. The timing diflerences mainly arising on
account of Un-absorbed Business Loss and Depreciation relating to earlier years have given rise to net
Deferred Tax Asset as on 31.03.2014 as well as for the yvear, As a prudent policy the said net Deferred Tax
Asset has not been recognized in the Accounts.

36. The Company manufactures intermediates/finished weaning food for itself and for third parties which
constitutes single business segment. Accordingly there are no businessigeographical segments to be
reported under Accounting standards (AS) 17 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

37. Related Party Disclosures as per Accounting Standard 18 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India :

Current Year:
Relationship
Haolding Company :
M/s. Vanity Case (India) Pvt. Ltd.

Current Year Related Party Transactions - Mil

Previous Year:
Relationship
Ultimate Holding Company :
Mis, V.5.Dempo Haoldings Pvt. Ltd
Associate Companias :
Mis. Marmagoa Shipping & Stevedoring Company Pvt. Ltd.
Mfs. Dempo Industries Pvt. Lid.
M/s. Dempo Travels Pyt. Ltd.
M/s. Motown Investments Pyt Lid,




Hindustan Foods Limited

Mature of transaction Ultimate Holding Associate
Company Companies
Professional fees & services rendered 267,026 -
Services availed 894 3,65,969
Interestonloan 76,20,431 8,59 600
Unsecured Loan obtained 6,71,79.806 -
Outstanding Loans as on 31-03-2014 14,18,26,9867 1.62,34,840
Trade Payable 1,04,92 429 68,86 96T

38. Previous year's figures have been recast & regrouped wherever necessary.
39, Value of Raw Material Consumption (Rs.)

During the year, there is change in Related Parties on account of change in shareholding pattern.

Particulars 6 Months ended 31.03.2014 12 Months ended 30.09.2013
Value % Value %
Imported - - - -
Indigenous 1.69,95,367 100% 3,18.83,166 100%
Total 1,69,95,367 100% 3,18,83,166 100%
40. Expenditure in Foreign Currency Nil Nil
41. Earning per Equity Share
Particulars & Months 12 Months ended
ended 31.03.2014 30.09.2013
Net Profit/ (Loss) available for Equity Shareholders {1,32,95,875) {1,20,22,500)
No. of Equity Shares 50,00,000 50,00,000
Earnings per Share (Rs.) {2.86) {2.40)
Basic (5.32) (2.40)
Diluted
Mominal Value per Equity Share (Ris.) 10.00 10.00
Vide our Report of even dale annexed herelo For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For R. Sundararaman & Co.,
Chartared Accountants
5. SRIRAM Shrinivas V. Dempo Ganesh T, Argekar
Partner Chairman Executive Director
Membership Mo : 202813
Place :  Panjim
Date:  19th May, 2014




HINDUSTAN FOODS LIMITED
{CIM: L15138GA1984PLCOD0E01)
Dempo House, Campal, Panaji-Goa 403001

ASSENT / DISSENT FORM FOR VOTING ON AGM RESOLUTIONS
1. Name(s) & Registered Address of
the sole / first named Membear
2. Name(s) of the Joint-Haolder(s), if any
3. i) Registered Folio No.
Iiy DP 1D Mo. & Client ID No.
{Applicable for Members holding
shares in dematerialized form)
4, Number of Shares held

5. I'We hereby exercise my [ our vole in respect of the following resolutions to be passed for the business stated
in the Motice of the Annual General Meeting dated August 14, 2014, by conveying my / our assent / dissent to
the resolutions by placing (v } mark in the appropriate box below:

RESOLUTIONS Mo.of | WWe assentlo | 1We dissent to
Shares | the Resolufion | the Resalution
(FOR) {AGAINST)

Ordinary Business
1. Adaoption of Financial Statements for the financial period ended 31" March, 2014,

2. Appointment of Mis. R. Sundararaman & Co., Charlered Accountants, as Statutory
Auditors and fixing their remuneration.

Special Business

3. Agpointment of Dr. Asht Bhuja Prasad, who retires by rotation, as an Independent
Direcior under Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013,

4, Appointmentof Mr. Soin V. Dempo, as a Direclor of the Company.

5, Appointmentof Mr. Ganesh T Argekar as a Director of the Company.

6. Appoiniment of Mr. Ganesh T. Argekar ag a Whole-time Director of the Company with
designation “Executive Direcior” under Section 196, 203 of the Companies Act, 2013,

7. Appointment of Adv. Sudin M. Usgaonkar, as an Independent Director under Section
149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

8. Appointment of Mr. Ashok N. Manjrekar, as an Independent Director under Section 149
of the Companies Act, 2013

9. Special Resolution for borrowing limits under Section 180{1){c) of the Companies Act,

10. Ratification of payment of remuneration to Cost Auditor for the Financial Year ending
March 31, 2015.

Place:
Date: Signature of the Member or
Authorised Representative
Notes: 1. If you opt lo cast your vole by e-voling, there is no need Lo fill up and sign this form.
2. Last date for receipt of Assent/Dissent Form: September 22, 2014 (5:00 pm).
3. Please read the instructions printed overleaf carefully before exercising your vole




INSTRUCTIONS
General Instructions

1. Shareholders have option to vote either through e-voting i.e. electronic means or to convey
assent/dissent in physical form. If a shareholder has opted for Physical Assent / Dissent Form, then
hefshe should not vote by e-voting and vice versa. However, in case Shareholders cast their vote
through both physical assent/dissent form and e-voting, then vole cast through physical assent/dissent
shall be considered, subject to the assent/dissent form being found to be valid and vote cast through e-
voting shall be treated as invalid.

2. The notice of Annual General Meeting is dispatched/e-mailed to the members whose names appear on
the Register of Members as on August 15, 2014 and voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid up
value of the shares registered in the name of the shareholders as on the said date.

3. Voting through physical assent / dissent form cannot be exercised by a proxy. However, corporate and
institutional shareholders shall be entitled to vote through their authorised representatives with proof of
their authorization, as stated below.

1. A Member desiring to exercise vole by Assent / Dissent should complete this Form (no other form or
photocopy thereof is permitted) and send it to the Scrutinizer, Mr. Sadashiv V. Shet, Practicing
Company Secretary and send the same at their cost to reach the Scrutinizer at the registered office of
the Company an or before the close of working hours i.e. 5.00 p.m. on September 22, 2014, All Forms
recaived after this date will be strictly treated as if the reply from such Member has not been received.

2. This Form should be completed and signed by the Shareholder (as per the specimen signature
registerad with the Company/ Depository Participants). In case of joint holding, this Form should be
complated and signed by the first named Shareholder and in his absence, by the next named
Shareholder.

3. Inrespectof shares held by corporate and institutional shareholders (companies, trusts, societies, etc.),
the completed Assent / Dissent Form should be accompanied by a certified copy of the relevant Board
Resolution/appropriate authorization, with the specimen signature(s) of the authorized signatory(ies)
duly attested.

4. The consent must be accorded by recording the assent in the column ‘FOR' or dissent in the column
'AGAINST by placing a tick mark (v ) in the appropriate column in the Form. The assent or dissent
received in any ather form shall not be considered valid.

5. Members are requested to fill the Form in indelible ink and aveid filling it by using erasable writing
medium(s)like pencil.

6. There will be one Assent [ Dissent Form for every folio / Client id irrespective of the number of joint
holders.

7. A Member may request for a duplicate Assent [ Dissent Form, if so required, and the same duly
completed should reach the Scrutinizer not later than the date specified under instruction No.1 above.

8. Members are requested not to send any other paper along with the Assent/ Dissent Form. They are also
requested not to write anything in the Assent / Dissent form except giving their assent or dissent and
putting their signature. If any such other paper is sent, the same will be destroyed by the Scrutinizer.

8. The Scrutinizer's decision on the validity of the Assent/ Dissent Form will be final and binding.
10. Incomplete, unsigned or incormectly ticked Assent / Dissent Forms will be rejected
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PROXY FORM

HINDUSTAN FOODS LIMITED
(CIN: L15138GA1584PLCOO0EDT)
Dempo House, Campal, Panagji-Goa 403001
MName:
Folio / Client ID:
Ernail:
I'We being the member{s) of ... L — shares of the above named Company, hereby
appoint
(1) NEME 5 Addrass:.
B DB i B v I e A B e s or failing him
B i s e e SIGAIWEL it e OF TRTING R
Eamal X i v inion it it i e s =TT 1T OO UPEORC AU UOPPUSRHREINE 1.3 (")« 1

proxy lo attend and vole {on a poll) tor me/us and on my/our behalf al the 29" Annual General Meatling of the
Company, lo be held on the 27" Seplember, 2014 at 10.30 a.m al the Regisiered Office of the Company at
Dempo House, Campal. Panaji-Goa 403001 and at any adjournment thereol in respect of such resolutions as

are indicated below:

Resolufion no. T AESOLUTIONS

Optional’

| Ordinary Business

Far Against

2. Appointment of M's. R. Sundararaman & Co., Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors and fixing
their remunesation.

Special Business

3. Appointment of Dr. Asht Bhu@ Prasad, who retres by rotation, as an Independenl Drector under
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013,

4. Appointment of Mr. Scin V. Dempo, as a Director of the Company.

5. Appeintmant of Mr. Ganesh T. Argekar as a Direclor of the Company,

6. Appointment of Mr. Ganesh T. Argekar as a Whole-time Direclor of the Company with designation
“Executive Director” under Section 186, 203 of the Companies Act. 2013

7. Appointment of Adv. Sudin M. Usgaonkar, as an Independent Director under Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

6. Appointment of Mr. Ashok N, Manjrekar, as an Independent Director under Section 149 of the
| Companies Acl, 2013,

9. Spedal Resolulion or borowing limits under Section 180(1){c) of the Companies Act, 2013,

|_10. Ratification of payment of mmuneration to Cost Auditor for the Finandal Year ending March 31, 2015.
Bigned this..............dayol e, 2014
Signature of shareholder ...................ccevvreun. n:m;;-
. Revenue
Signature of Praxy hokIenis) .........c...oocoivvrinnnans . Sinimg
MNote:

1. This form of prosy in order to be eflective should be duly compleled and deposited at the
Registered Cifice of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meefing.
2. For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statements and Notes, please refer 1o the Notice of the 29" Annual General Meeting.
* 3. It is opfional to put "X’ in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the box If you leave the For or
‘Against column blank ageinst any or all Fesolutions, your Proxy will be entiliad to vote in the manner as he/she thinks
e

4. Please complete all details including detais of member(s) in above box belore submission
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HINDUSTAN FOODS LIMITED
DEMPO HOUSE,
CAMPAL, PANAJI -GOA 403 001



